
Agenda Item 3 



 

Page 1 of 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
http://ethics.nv.gov 

 
MINUTES 

of the meeting of the 
NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

 
The Commission on Ethics held a public meeting on 

Wednesday, January 17, 2024, at 10:00 a.m. 
at the following location: 

 

Nevada Legislative Building 

Room 2135 

401 S. Carson Street 

Carson City, NV 89701 
 

and via videoconference to: 
 

Grant Sawyer State Building 

Room 4406 

555 E. Washington Avenue 

Las Vegas, NV 89101 
 

Zoom Meeting Information 
Zoom Meeting Telephone Number: 888-475-4499 

Meeting ID: 828 8537 1206 
 
These minutes constitute a summary of the above proceedings of the Nevada 

Commission on Ethics. A recording of the meeting is available on YouTube, Part 1 and Part 2 and 
a transcript of Agenda Item 8 is available for review at the Commission’s office.  

 
1.  Call to Order and Roll Call. 
 

 Chair Kim Wallin, CPA, CMA, CFM appeared in-person in Room 2135 of the Nevada 
Legislative Building in Carson City and called the meeting to order at 10:04 a.m. Vice Chair Thoran 
Towler, Esq., and Commissioner Scott Scherer, Esq. also appeared in-person in Carson City. 
Commissioners Teresa Lowry, Esq. and Amanda Yen, Esq. appeared via Zoom videoconference. 
Present for Commission staff in Carson City were Executive Director Ross E. Armstrong, Esq., 
Commission Counsel Brandi Jensen, Esq., Associate Counsel Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq., 
Investigator Erron Terry, Senior Legal Researcher Wendy Pfaff and Executive Assistant Kari 
Pedroza.  
 
 Chair Wallin noted that Commissioners John T. Moran III, Esq. and Stan R. Olsen were 
experiencing technical difficulties joining the Zoom videoconference and the Commission would 
proceed on Agenda Items 2, 3 and 5 while awaiting the Commissioners’ arrival on Zoom.  
 
 
 

http://ethics.nv.gov/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=CGOS7sluZ_8
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=s6uaXBv-lWU&t=6s


 

 
Page 2 of 10 

 

2.  Public Comment.  
 
There was no public comment.  

 
3. Approval of Minutes of the December 7, 2023, Commission Meeting. 
 

Chair Wallin stated that all Commissioners were present for the December 7, 2023 
Commission Meeting, except for Commissioner Lowry who was excused and therefore precluded 
from participating in this item. 

 
Commissioner Scherer moved to approve the December 7, 2023, Commission Meeting 

Minutes as presented. Vice Chair Towler seconded the motion. The Motion was put to a vote and 
carried as follows: 

 
Chair Wallin:    Aye. 
Vice Chair Towler:   Aye. 
Commissioner Lowry:   Abstain. 
Commissioner Scherer:  Aye.  
Commissioner Yen:   Aye. 
 

5. Discussion, review and possible action related to Advisory Opinions proposed format 
updates as presented by the Commission Counsel. 

 
Chair Wallin introduced the item and asked Commission Counsel Jensen for her 

presentation. 
 
Commission Counsel Jensen noted that the discussion would be a continuation from 

Agenda Item 8 of the November 8, 2023, Commission Meeting. She began her presentation on 
the proposed updates to the Commission’s Advisory Opinions as outlined in the PowerPoint 
presentation included in the meeting materials and asked for approval to use the Commission’s 
logo at the top of the opinions. 

 
Commissioner Yen moved to approve the use of the Commission’s logo instead of the 

Nevada state seal at the top of Commission issued Advisory Opinions. Commissioner Lowry 
seconded the motion. The motion was put to a vote and carried as follows: 

 
Chair Wallin:    Aye. 
Vice Chair Towler:   Aye. 
Commissioner Lowry:   Aye. 
Commissioner Scherer:  Aye.  
Commissioner Yen:   Aye. 

 
Commission Counsel Jensen continued her presentation to the Commission regarding 

proposed format updates to the Commission’s Advisory Opinions including the addition of a  
summary of the request and a topic to the beginning of the opinion, language in the opinion to be 
more common vernacular than legal, the order of the document’s headings and the publishing 
process. 

 
Commissioners Olsen joined the meeting via Zoom videoconference.   
 
Commissioner Yen thanked Commission Counsel Jensen for her presentation and stated 

her agreement with providing the summary and topic on the first page of the document. She added  
her preference as an attorney would be to include the relevant statutes towards the beginning of 
the opinion as opposed to the end and encouraged her fellow Commissioners who are not 
attorneys to weigh in on the statute placement since the majority of persons reading the opinion 
would most likely be non-lawyers. Chair Wallin shared her preference that the relevant statutes 



 

 
Page 3 of 10 

 

be included after the Findings of Facts heading section. Commissioner Olsen also stated his 
preference would be for the statutes to be in the beginning.  

 
Commissioner Moran joined the meeting via Zoom videoconference.  
 
Commissioner Lowry thanked Commission Counsel Jensen for her presentation and 

stated that she liked the addition of a summary and topic on the first page of the document. She 
agreed with her fellow Commissioners on the placement of the relevant statutes section and 
added the best flow would be the section headings in the following order: Findings of Fact, 
Relevant Statutes and Conclusions of Law.  

 
The Commissioners discussed increasing the timeframe for Commission Counsel and 

Commission staff to finalize the opinion after the Commission approved the proposed opinion.  
 
Commissioner Scherer inquired if the number of Advisory Opinion requests the 

Commission had received this fiscal year was much greater than in previous fiscal years and 
Executive Director Armstrong provided the requested information. Commissioner Scherer echoed 
Commissioner Yen’s comments and added that he would like to see the relevant statutes section 
moved up to proceed the Commission Decision section. He stated that the option of a subtopic 
for Advisory Opinions is a good idea and suggested that it be left to the discretion of the 
Commission Counsel and/or the Executive Director.  

 
Vice Chair Towler agreed with his fellow Commissioners on moving the Relevant Statutes 

section towards the front of the Advisory Opinions and listed the proposed order of headings as:  
I. Executive Summary 
II. Findings of Fact 
III. Relevant Statutes 
IV. Conclusions of Law 
V. Commission Decision 

 
Chair Wallin discussed the Executive Summary and suggested wording under that section 

indicating it is only a summary and the following language of the opinion provides the legal 
decision of the Commission in the matter. Executive Director offered that the Executive Summary 
could include a footnote that outlines the Executive Summary as a summary and not part of the 
official Commission decision. 

 
Commission Counsel Jensen stated that the Executive Summary would be almost 

identical to the Conclusions of Law section and there would be no modification to the Executive 
Summary that is not included in the Conclusions of Law section. Chair Wallin shared that the 
purpose of the Executive Summary was to provide a summary in layman’s English terms.  

 
Commissioner Scherer agreed with Executive Director Armstrong that a footnote stating 

‘the summary is provided for convenience and ease of use and does not represent the actual 
opinion of the Commission, which is set forth below’ would be appropriate.  

 
Commissioner Towler moved to approve the Advisory Opinion format as discussed with 

headings in the following order, Topic, Executive Summary, Findings of Fact, Relevant Statutes, 
Conclusions of Law and Commission Decision, with a footnote in the Executive Summary and 
optional subtopics. Commissioner Scherer seconded the motion. The motion was put to a vote 
and carried as follows: 

Chair Wallin:    Aye. 
Vice Chair Towler:   Aye. 
Commissioner Lowry:   Aye. 
Commissioner Moran:   Aye. 
Commissioner Olsen:   Aye. 
Commissioner Scherer:  Aye.  
Commissioner Yen:   Aye. 



 

 
Page 4 of 10 

 

 
4. Discussion and possible action to approve a Proposed Stipulation concerning Ethics 

Complaint Case No. 23-048C regarding Kevin Chisum, Assessor, Mineral County, State 
of Nevada. 
 
Chair Wallin introduced the item and stated for the record that proper notice had been 

provided and waivers were received regarding this item. Chair Wallin further noted that Vice Chair 
Towler and Commissioners Lowry and Yen served as members of the Review Panel and would 
be precluded from participating in this item pursuant to NRS 281A.220(4). 

 
Chair Wallin asked the parties in the Complaint to introduce themselves for the record. 

Associate Counsel Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq. appeared on behalf of Executive Director 
Armstrong. Mr. Kevin Chisum appeared via Zoom videoconference and introduced for the record.  

 
Associate Counsel Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq. presented an overview of the Proposed 

Stipulation to resolve Ethics Complaint Case No. 23-048C regarding Mr. Chisum. The terms of 
the Proposed Stipulation were that Mr. Chisum agreed to stipulate to one non-willful violation of 
NRS 281A.400(7) and because Mr. Chisum had already attended in-person Ethics training 
provided by the Executive Director, no further training requirement would be imposed, and no civil 
penalty was proposed. Associate Counsel Bassett acknowledged that she and Executive Director 
Armstrong find the terms of the Proposed Stipulation appropriate under the circumstances and 
thanked Mr. Chisum, Commissioner Yen and Commission Counsel Jensen for their assistance in 
settling the matter.   

 
Commissioner Scherer commented that the facts of the case can be perceived two ways, 

1) that Mr. Chisum was seeking to correct an issue he noticed in the county or 2) he was trying to 
do something that would benefit himself, and based on the mitigating factors outlined by Associate 
Counsel Bassett he stated he would support the approval of the Proposed Stipulation. He 
encouraged Mr. Chisum to be careful going forward and avoid using his public position to benefit 
his personal interest.  

 
Commissioner Scherer made a motion to accept the terms of the Stipulation as presented 

by the parties to resolve Ethics Complaint Case No. 23-048C (Chisum) and direct Commission 
for the Commission to finalize the agreement in legal form and any matters relating thereto. 
Commissioner Olsen seconded the motion. The Motion was put to a vote and carried as follows: 

 
Chair Wallin:    Aye. 
Vice Chair Towler:   Abstain pursuant to NRS 281A.220. 
Commissioner Lowry:   Abstain pursuant to NRS 281A.220. 
Commissioner Moran:   Aye. 
Commissioner Olsen:   Aye. 
Commissioner Scherer:  Aye.  
Commissioner Yen:   Abstain pursuant to NRS 281A.220. 

 
Chair Wallin thanked Mr. Chisum for his cooperation in the resolution of this matter. Chair 

Wallin thanked Commissioner Yen for presiding over the settlement conference and assisting in 
settling the matter.  

 
Mr. Chisum thanked the Commissioners and Commission staff and stated that the Ethics 

training presented by Executive Director Armstrong he attended was beneficial. He acknowledged 
he would be more aware of his conduct in the future.  

 
6. Consideration and approval of the Commission Meeting and Attendance Policy as 

presented by the Executive Director.   
  
Chair Wallin introduced the item and asked Executive Director Armstrong for his 

presentation. 
 



 

 
Page 5 of 10 

 

Executive Director Armstrong provided an overview of the proposed Commission Meeting 
and Attendance Policy and referenced the policy included in the meeting materials. He stated that 
the issues resulting in the creation of the policy predated the current Commission.  

 
Vice Chair Towler shared his opinion that the policy was reasonable and did not ask too 

much of the Commissioners, who serve in voluntary positions. He appreciated that the majority 
of meeting dates are provided a year in advance to assist with Commissioner attendance at 
Commission meetings.   

 
Chair Wallin stated her view that the policy was important because the position of 

Commissioner is voluntary which implies a commitment to the Commission and the citizens of 
Nevada. She added further that if someone is too busy to honor their commitment they should 
step down to allow another incumbent to be an active member of the Commission. Chair Wallin 
clarified that participation at Commission meetings means appearance and action throughout the 
meetings, not just making an appearance and leaving. Executive Director Armstrong confirmed 
that intention regarding Commission meeting participation can be incorporated into the proposed 
policy.  

 
Commissioner Lowry asked the Chair to discuss the meeting excusal process and how 

excused absences factor into the meeting attendance section of the policy. Chair Wallin provided 
the process whereby a Commissioner can be excused from a meeting if that Commissioner 
provides notice via electronic mail to the Commission Chair and the Executive Director that they 
are unable to attend the meeting. She stated that the attendance section of the policy is 
reasonable as  the Commission is provided notice of Meeting Dates well in advance and 
Commissioners may attend via Zoom. Chair Wallin confirmed that excused absences are 
considered as participatory. 

 
Commissioner Moran shared he was unaware whether comparative research or due 

diligence had been done to ascertain if other boards and commissions put these types of levers 
in place for member attendance. He stated that the Commissioners are professionals, have a 
reciprocal obligation based on their appointments and have mandatory duties. Commissioner 
Moran expressed his opinion that attempting to monitor Commissioner attendance with a 
requirement that Commissioners have their cameras on is not feasible. He further provided that 
taking the time to discuss a policy outlining Commissioner attendance and incurring obligation 
and requirement that staff track attendance seemed petty and not a good use of the Commission’s 
limited resources. Commissioner Moran noted that his feedback was not intended as a reply or 
being against the policy, just his point of view.  

 
Chair Wallin clarified that Executive Assistant Pedroza already keeps track of Commission 

attendance in order to compensate the Commissioners.  
 
Commissioner Scherer commented that he understood Commissioner Moran’s position 

and shared his understanding of the policy was that if a Commissioner didn’t meet the participation 
quota for Commission meetings, a report to that Commissioner’s appointing authority could be 
made and the appointing authority would determine any resulting action. He stated he was fine 
with the policy and prepared to support it. 

 
Commissioner Yen made a motion to approve the Executive Director’s Commission 

Meeting and Attendance Policy as presented. Commissioner Lowry seconded the motion. The 
Motion was put to a vote and carried unanimously.  
 

7. Report by Executive Director on agency status and operations, and possible direction 
thereon. Items to be discussed include, without limitation: 

a. Quarterly Case Log 
b. Education and Outreach 
c. Budget Update 
d. Staffing and Recruitment 
e. Upcoming Meetings 



 

 
Page 6 of 10 

 

 
Chair Wallin introduced the Item and asked Executive Director Armstrong for his 

presentation.  
 
a. Quarterly Case Log: Executive Director Armstrong referenced the updated 

Quarterly Case Logs provided in the meeting materials, explained that the updated case logs are 
provided each quarter and emphasized that the Commissioners received the unredacted versions 
and if they wanted to ask a question during the open meeting they must reference the case 
number instead of the name associated with the case. Executive Director Armstrong reported that 
the Commission is effectively maintaining the caseload and informed the Commission of his goal 
to have all cases from 2 fiscal years ago resolved completely by the end of the current fiscal year 
and all cases received last fiscal year investigated. He discussed the few pending cases from the 
past two fiscal years.  

  
b. Education and Outreach: Executive Director Armstrong referenced the written 

report included in the meeting materials. He stated that Commission staff are continuing to 
evaluate the best approach for increasing the number of users on the Commission’s Ethics 
Online training resource. Executive Director Armstrong informed the Commission of 
upcoming outreach and education opportunities including a webinar briefing scheduled on 
January 25 for Campaign Candidates and Campaign Staff to assist with Ethics Law 
compliance during Campaign season and a presentation at the Emergency Management 
Conference in February. He noted recent outreach regarding the Acknowledgment of Ethical 
Standards form statutory filing by January 15 of each even numbered year.   

 
c. Budget Update: Executive Director Armstrong informed the Commission that staff 

completed the fiscal year’s computer equipment replacement and reiterated that it was a base 
budget year for next session’s budget building. He explained last session’s budget building issue 
related to employee cost of living adjustments (COLAs). Executive Director Armstrong provided 
an update that the Commission’s Legislative Regulation was assigned official regulation number 
R136-23 and that the Legislative Counsel Bureau had completed the initial regulation review.  

 
d. Staffing & Recruitment: Executive Director Armstrong shared that the Education 

and Outreach Officer position recruitment yielded over 60 applications with over 40 applicants 
qualified for the position. He stated there were two rounds of interviews and a final candidate was 
selected, however he could not share the selected candidate’s name at that time.  
 

e. Upcoming Meetings: Executive Director Armstrong outlined dates and locations for 
the upcoming Commission meetings in 2024 and noted that there would not be an open meeting 
in February, only a closed review panel meeting.  
 

Vice Chair Towler asked for confirmation on the June Commission meeting date because 
the 19th is a holiday and Executive Director Armstrong replied that the June meeting would be 
rescheduled for another day, thanking Vice Chair Towler for pointing that out.  

 
Commissioner Scherer emphasized the importance of Education and Outreach provided 

by the Commission and requested statistical data be provided at a future meeting pertaining to 
the Commission’s caseload, specifically the number of advisory opinions received and whether 
there were trends with Ethics trainings provided and advisory opinions received. Executive 
Director Armstrong stated that the information would be provided at a future meeting. 
Commissioner Scherer commented that there may be a need for an additional position on the 
Commission’s staff if the advisory opinion requests submitted continue to increase. 

 
Chair Wallin pointed out that when there was a vacancy in the Commission Counsel 

position the Executive Director and the Commission Council continued to maintain the caseload 
and with the addition of the Outreach and Education Officer the Executive Director’s workload will 
be lighter. She requested additional statutory deadline dates be added to the log to ensure that 
the Commission is meeting its deadlines such as initial contact with requesters of complaints and 
advisory opinions.  



 

 
Page 7 of 10 

 

Executive Director Armstrong noted that the Commission has performance measures in 
place for budget building purposes that would benefit from the Commission’s review and potential 
changes to better assess the performance of the Commission’s workflow. He agreed to provide 
the current performance measures at a future meeting. 

 
Commissioner Moran shared his experience when he previously served as Chair of the 

Commission on Ethics that the Commission was not providing a lot of Outreach and Education 
and that was one of the concerns the Legislature and the Governor as appointing authorities of 
the Commission had at the time. He reported he is happy to see the current increase in Education 
and Outreach being conducted and commented that he too would be interested in seeing data 
regarding possible correlation between trainings and the number of cases submitted. 
Commissioner Moran offered to assist with training and outreach and expressed his enthusiasm 
in doing so. 

 
Vice Chair Towler moved to approve the Executive Director’s agency status report as 

presented. Commissioner Scherer seconded the motion. The motion was put to a vote and carried 
unanimously. 
 
 Chair Wallin noted that the Commission would break for lunch and reconvene at 12 pm. 
She excused Vice Chair Towler, and Commissioners Lowry and Yen from the remainder of the 
Commission meeting as they served as review panel members for the matter under consideration 
in Agenda Item 8 and were precluded from participating in that item. She noted that they may join 
the meeting and observe but would not be able to participate in discussing or acting on the matter.  

 
8. Hearing on Dispositive Motions in Ethics Complaint Case No. 23-056C regarding Hillary 

Schieve, Mayor, City of Reno, State of Nevada, including providing authority to the Chair 
of the Commission to prepare and issue the order reflecting the Commission’s decision 
and other matters relating thereto, in consultation with Counsel for the Commission. 

• The Commission may receive information or evidence concerning this matter and 
deliberate in a closed session pursuant to NRS 281A.760 (see notes below). 

• The Commission will take action on the item in open session. 
 

Chair Wallin introduced the item and stated for the record that proper notice had been 
provided and waivers were received regarding this item. Chair Wallin further noted that Vice Chair 
Towler and Commissioners Lowry and Yen served as members of the Review Panel and would 
be precluded from participating in the consideration of the dispositive motions under this item 
pursuant to NRS 281A.220(4). She provided that all remaining Commissioners may participate in 
and vote on the matter.  

 
Chair Wallin asked the parties in the Complaint to identify themselves for the record. 

Associate Counsel Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq. appeared on behalf of Executive Director 
Armstrong. Jonathan Shipman, Esq. from the Reno City Attorney’s Office, appeared in person on 
behalf of Hillary Schieve, who was not in attendance but was provided proper notice of the 
Agenda Item and understood that the Commission would proceed in her absence.  

 
Chair Wallin noted that the Commission had two dispositive motions to consider and 

outlined that the first consideration to be made was whether Ms. Schieve had violated the Ethics 
Law.  

 
Chair Wallin provided the dispositive motion presentations order to be as follows: 

1. Associate Counsel Bassett would present argument on the Executive 
Director’s Motion for Summary Judgement and would have 30 minutes for that 
argument  

2. Counsel Shipman would present argument on Ms. Schieve’s Response to the 
Executive Director’s Motion for Summary Judgment and would have 30 
minutes for that argument  



 

 
Page 8 of 10 

 

3. Associate Counsel Bassett would have 5 minutes to provide the Executive 
Director’s Reply to Ms. Schieve’s response to the Executive Director’s Motion 
for Summary Judgement  

4. Counsel Shipman would present argument on Ms. Schieve’s Motion for 
Summary Judgement and would have 30 minutes for that argument 

5. Associate Counsel Bassett would present argument on the Executive 
Director’s Opposition to Ms. Schieve’s Motion for Summary Judgement and 
would have 30 minutes for that argument  

6. Counsel Shipman would have 5 minutes to provide the Ms. Schieve’s Reply  
 
Chair Wallin stated that after the presentations she would ask if any Commissioners had 

questions of either party and noted that if any Commissioner had legal questions for Commission 
Counsel that would be done in a closed meeting.   

 
Associate Counsel Bassett presented the Executive Director’s Motion for Summary 

Judgment argument and outlined that Ms. Schieve’s alleged violations of the Ethics Law, 
specifically NRS 281A.420(1) and (3) were properly brought before the Commission and judgment 
should be granted by the Commission as the pleadings and evidence demonstrate that no 
genuine issues of material fact exist in regard to these specific violations. Associate Counsel 
Bassett outlined potential civil penalties allowed for violations determined as willful by the 
Commission.  

 
On behalf of Ms. Schieve, Counsel Shipman argued the merits of his client’s Response to 

the Executive Director’s Motion for Summary Judgment. 
 
Associate Counsel Bassett provided a brief summation of the Executive Director’s Reply 

to Ms. Schieve’s response to the Executive Director’s Motion for Summary Judgement. 
 
Counsel Shipman presented Ms. Schieve’s Motion for Summary Judgement. 
 
Associate Counsel Bassett argued the merits of the Executive Director’s Opposition to Ms. 

Schieve’s Motion for Summary Judgment.  
 
Counsel Shipman replied to the Executive Director’s Opposition to his client’s Motion for 

Summary Judgment.  
 
Chair Wallin and Commissioner Scherer asked questions of Associate Counsel Bassett 

and Counsel Shipman, and each provided responses to the questions.  
 
Commissioner Moran provided a statement to both parties thanking them for their 

arguments and shared his appreciation for their time, efforts and professionalism.  
 
Chair Wallin outlined that the dispositive arguments regarding willfulness would be done 

in a closed session and further that Commission deliberations would be done in a separate closed 
session. Chair Wallin acknowledged that no action would be taken by the Commission while in a 
closed session. 

 
Chair Wallin called the meeting into confidential closed session for the parties’ arguments 

pertaining to willfulness and Commission deliberations at 1:58 p.m.  
 
The Commission deliberated in a confidential closed session in a separate meeting room 

until Chair Wallin called the meeting back into open session at 3:01 p.m.  
 
Chair Wallin stated for the record that the Commission had reviewed the entire record for 

this matter and considered the pending motions and arguments of counsel.  



 

 
Page 9 of 10 

 

 
Chair Wallin moved to grant Summary Judgment in favor of the Executive Director in full, 

including violations of NRS 281A.420(1), being willful, and NRS 281A.420(3) as non-willful. And 
the penalties are a letter of reprimand and training within 90 days of the Commission 
determination. Chair Wallin further moved to deny all other relief set forth in the motions filed by 
the parties. Chair Wallin included in her motion direction to counsel for the Commission to prepare 
an order in coordination with the Chair to reflect the determination of the Commission. 
Commissioner Lowry seconded the motion. The Motion was put to a vote and failed as follows: 

 
Chair Wallin:    Aye. 
Commissioner Moran:   Aye.  
Commissioner Olsen:   Nay. 
Commissioner Scherer:  Nay. 
 

Commissioner Scherer moved to direct Commission Counsel to prepare two opinions in 
resolution of this matter reflecting the views of both the Chair and Commissioner Moran, and the 
views of Commissioners Scherer and Olsen with both opinions emphasizing the Commission’s 
strong encouragement that Mayor Schieve attend Ethics in Government Law training. 
Commissioner Olsen seconded the motion. The Motion was put to a vote and carried as follows: 

 
Chair Wallin:    Aye. 
Commissioner Moran:   Aye.  
Commissioner Olsen:   Aye. 
Commissioner Scherer:  Aye. 
 

Commissioner Moran asked the Chair for clarification of her Aye vote, and she provided 
the requested information. 

 
Commission Counsel Jensen confirmed that the motion outlined two separate opinions, 

one outlining the Chair and Commissioner Moran’s determination and one outlining 
Commissioners Olsen and Scherer’s determination? The Chair and Commissioner Scherer 
confirmed the intention of the motion and noted that Commission Counsel Jensen would work 
with the Chair on one opinion and with Commissioner Scherer on the other. Commission Counsel 
Jensen thanked the Chair and Commissioner Scherer for their clarifications.  

 
Commission Counsel confirmed that the Commission did not find that Mayor Schieve 

violated the Ethics Law by Ms. Schieve because there was not a majority vote to support that 
finding. Both Chair Wallin and Commissioner Scherer responded affirmatively.  

 
Counsel Shipman thanked the Commissioner for its consideration of the matter.  
 
Chair Wallin thanked Mr. Shipman for his participation and his client’s cooperation and 

assistance with Commission staff throughout the process.  
 

8. Commissioner Comments on matters including, without limitation, identification of future 
agenda items, upcoming meeting dates and meeting procedures. No action will be taken 
under this agenda item. 
 
Chair Wallin discussed the Commission meeting travel procedure in preparation for the 

March 20 meeting scheduled to be held in Las Vegas. She encouraged Commissioners to 
respond to the travel email they receive from Commission staff expeditiously to ensure Executive 
Assistant Pedroza has enough time to coordinate travel. Chair Wallin stated that Commissioners 
who wanted to travel for Commission meetings must give at least two weeks’ notice of their 
request to travel.  

Chair Wallin reminded her fellow Commissioners to access and utilize their Commission 
issued email accounts for all Commission business.  

 



 

 
Page 10 of 10 

 

Commissioner Moran asked for clarification on the travel request timeframe and Chair 
Wallin responded that staff needs 14 days because staff has to submit the request to the 
administrative services division prior to coordinating travel arrangements. She provided further 
details pertaining to the travel timeframes and processes.  

 
9. Public Comment. 
 

There was no Public Comment.  
 

10. Adjournment. 
 
Commissioner Scherer made a motion to adjourn the public meeting. Commissioner 

Towler seconded the motion. The Motion was put to a vote and carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:16 p.m. 

 
Minutes prepared by:     Minutes approved March 20, 2024: 
 
/s/ Kari Pedroza  ________________________________ 
Kari Pedroza  Kim Wallin, CPA, CMA, CFM 
Executive Assistant      Chair 
 
/s/ Ross Armstrong  ________________________________ 
Ross Armstrong, Esq.   Thoran Towler, Esq.  
Executive Director   Vice Chair  



Agenda Item 5 



OUTREACH 

EFFORTS 

OVERVIEW

1



THREE MAJOR FUNCTIONS OF THE ETHICS COMMISSION

1. Education and Outreach about Nevada’s Ethics Law

2. Provide Advisory Opinions to public officers and employees about Nevada’s 

Ethics Law

3. Receive and process Complaints alleging violations of Nevada’s Ethics Law

2



EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR STATUTORY DUTY – 281A.240(1)

(f) Upon the request of any public officer or the 
employer of a public employee, conduct 
training on the requirements of this chapter, 
the rules and regulations adopted by the 
Commission and previous opinions of the 
Commission…

3



COMMISSION STATUTORY DUTY – 281A.290(1)

6. Publish a manual for the use of public 

officers and employees that explains the 

requirements of this chapter.

4



EDUCATION & OUTREACH – ETHICS TEAM DUTIES

Education

(Training & 

Outreach)

Prevention

(Advisory Opinions, 

Acknowledgements)

Intervention 

(Investigations, 

Adjudications)

Executive Director X X X

Commission Counsel X X

Associate Counsel X X

Senior Legal Researcher X X

Investigator X

Executive Assistant X X X

Outreach Education 

Officer

X

5



MODERNIZED OUTREACH APPROACH

Statutory Approach - 1999

 Manual 

 Training Classes

 Other 1999 things

 “Believe” by Cher and “No Scrubs” by TLC

 PayPal named top 10 worst business idea

 5 years before Facebook launched

Current Approach

 Online resources and manual

 Training classes – in-person and zoom

 Social Media

 Media Outreach

 Online Learning Management Systems

6



TRAINING DATA – SESSIONS VS. PEOPLE

453

1484

598

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

FY22 FY23 FY24*

People Trained by Fiscal Year

People Trained

7

* FY24 is year to date



TRAINING DATA –

WHO & HOW

 95% in-person

 5% virtual

8



CONNECTION BETWEEN TRAINING AND SUBSEQUENT CASES? NO

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23

Any link between training and subsequent complaints or advisory 
requets?

Advisory Complaints Training

9



MANUAL UPDATE

10



SOCIAL 

MEDIA 

FOLLOWERS

11



RESOURCES PAGE

687 Visitors 

in 2023

12



NEVADA ETHICS ONLINE

 Staffing capacity to maintain, 

sign-up users

 Power to expand and 

specialize

 Effective in checking 

compliance in Complaint 

cases

13



LESSONS LEARNED & EXPERIMENTING WITH INNOVATION

 Outreach and education has been modernized

 Different channels for different audiences

 Leveraging appearances, associations, and social 

media to drive more requests for training

 Staff capacity has been our biggest barrier to 

maximizing success

 Recent experiments

 Emergency Preparedness Conference

 Briefing for Candidates and Campaign

14



PLANS FOR THE 

FUTURE

15

 Complete new version of the 

Ethics Manual

 Leverage tools in Nevada 

Ethics Online to maximize 

users and content

 Explore and update training 

performance data

 Proactive outreach



Agenda Item 6 



1 
 

 

Executive Director Report – March 2024 

Education and Outreach 

• Nevada Ethics Online - ready to expand users 

• Recent Training 

o Campaign and Candidates Webinar 

o Las Vegas Building Inspectors 

o Emergency Management Conference 

o Governor’s Staff 

• Upcoming  

o Nevada State Contractors Board 

o Clark County (in-person and live) 

o Las Vegas Hills Mental Health Coalition 

Budget Update 

• Budget Process for 2025 Session 

o Kick-off March 6 

o Governor’s 3-Year Plan 

o Technology Investment Notification Due 4/1 – PDI replacement 

o April Meeting Discussion 

Regulation Update 

• Public Hearing – 4/17 

Upcoming Meetings 

• April 17 – Reno (State Bar of Nevada) 

• May – Review Panels 

• June 26 - Winnemucca 

 
Submitted: Ross E. Armstrong, Executive Director 
Date: 3/13/24 



Agenda Item 7



   

 

   
1 

 

 

2025 Legislative Session Overview 

Key Dates for Policy Bills 

4/1/24 – Governor’s Office starts initial meetings with agencies on policy concepts 

6/3/24 – Final BDR concept presentations to Governor’s office begin 

7/29/24 – Governor approved BDRs entered into system 

2/3/25 – Legislative Session begins 

6/2/25 – Legislative Session ends 

Recent History for Ethics-sponsored bills 

 

 

 

2
0

1
9

 S
es

si
o

n

SB129

Comprehensive 
changes 

proposed

Amended twice

Died in 
Assembly

2
0

2
1

 S
es

si
o

n

AB65

Comprehensive 
changes proposed

Legislative carve 
out amendment

Passed by 2/3 
Majority

Vetoed

2
0

2
3

 S
es

si
o

n
AB66

Comprehensive 
changes proposed

Legislative carve 
out amendment

Died in Senate



   

 

   
2 

 

Possible Approaches 

Option A – A bill with comprehensive changes 

Option B – A bill focused on a single issue 

Option C – Submit no policy proposals for the Legislative Session 

 

 

Decisions for the Commission  

1) Direction to the Executive Director ranking the most favored approach for the 2025 

Legislative Session. 

 

 

 

2) If the preference is to submit a bill, appointment of a Legislative Subcommittee to vet 

and approve language to be submitted to the Governor’s office for review and approval. 

Recommend a subcommittee size of 3.  



Agenda Item 8



 

E L I Z A B E T H  J .  B A S S E T T  
 

ATTORNEY 
 

CONTACT 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXPERIENCE  
 

Associate Counsel, Nevada Commission on Ethics 

May 2021-Present 

Prepares legal recommendations regarding jurisdictional 

determinations and investigations of ethics complaints, 

evaluates and presents evidence for adjudicatory hearings, 

prepares legal motions, negotiates stipulated agreements and 

represents the Executive Director in associated litigation.  

 

Of Counsel, Fennemore. 

January 2019-May 2021 

Represented clients in all phases of civil litigation matters in 

Nevada and California state and federal district courts and 

appellate courts. 

 

Associate Attorney, Blanchard Krasner & French 

September 2017-January 2019 

Lead attorney for firm’s growing Nevada litigation and appellate 

practices.  Represented clients in all phases of civil litigation.   

 

Staff Attorney, Supreme Court of Nevada 

May 2011-September 2017 

Analyzed legal issues and arguments in pending appeals, 

including the interpretation of statutes and case law.  Drafted 

memoranda, dispositional and procedural orders, and opinions 

in civil.   

 

Associate Attorney, Berding & Weil 

August 2005-April 2011 

Represented plaintiffs in all phases of multi-party, complex 

litigation in California and Nevada state and federal courts 

through trial and post-trial motion practice.   

 

Associate Attorney, Foreman & Brasso 

November 2003-August 2005 

Represented clients in litigation and business matters before 

California state and federal courts.   

BAR ADMISSIONS 
 

California State Bar 

2003 

Nevada State Bar 

2004 

 

 
 
 
EDUCATION 

 

University of California, Davis 

School of Law 

J.D., May 2003 

Articles Editor,  

UC Davis Law Review 

 

University of California,  

Santa Barbara 

B.A., English 

2000 

 

 

 
 

 

 


	Item 5 - Outreach and Education Presentation.pdf
	Slide 1: Outreach Efforts overview
	Slide 2: Three major functions of the ethics commission
	Slide 3: Executive Director Statutory duty – 281A.240(1)
	Slide 4: Commission Statutory duty – 281A.290(1)
	Slide 5: Education & Outreach – Ethics Team Duties
	Slide 6: Modernized Outreach Approach
	Slide 7: Training Data – Sessions vs. People
	Slide 8: Training Data – Who & HOw
	Slide 9: Connection between Training and subsequent cases? No
	Slide 10: Manual Update
	Slide 11: Social Media Followers
	Slide 12: Resources Page  
	Slide 13: Nevada Ethics Online
	Slide 14: Lessons Learned & Experimenting with innovation
	Slide 15: Plans for the future




